

# MANUAL ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

# **Table of Contents**

I. Introduction	3
II. Objective	3
III. Definition of Terms and Related Documents	7
IV. ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) and IC Annual Corporate Report (ACGR)	
V. Governance Landscape	t
A. Board of Directors	
B. Directors	7
C. Chairman of the Board	
i. Functions and Responsibility	
ii. Separation of Roles of Chairman and President	9
D. Corporate Secretary	Ω
E. Compliance Officer	۵
VI. Board Committees	10
VII. Board Composition	10
A. Qualifications of Directors	10
B. Election and Term	11
C. Succession Planning	11
D. Board Independence	11
E. Board Diversity Policy	13
VIII. Board Performance	14
A. Performance Evaluation	14
B. Training and Development of Board Members	14
IX. Collective Liability of Directors	15
A. Unlawful Act, Gross Negligence or Bad Faith and Conflict of Interest	15
B. Contractual Stipulation	15
C. Disloyalty	15
D. Filing False Statement	16
X. Conflict of Interest	16
XI. Confidentialities and Information Management	16
XII. Internal Control System and Transparency	17
A. Enterprise Risk Management	17
B. Audit	
i. Internal Audit Function	
ii. External Audit Function	
C. Related Party Transaction	
D. Financial Reporting	18
E. Disclosure of Non-Financial Information	18
XIII. Relationship with Shareholders	19
A. Promoting Shareholders Rights	19
B. Protecting of Minority Shareholders	19
XIV. Approvals and Reviews	19
Conforme	20
XV. Annexes	21
A. List of Disqualification of directors	21
B. Insurance Commission Reportorial Requirements	22

## I. Introduction

The Board of Directors and Management, i.e., officers and staffof Medocare commit themselves to adhere to the highest principles of good corporate governance as embodied in the Company's Amended By-Laws, Code of Conduct and Code Ethical Standards, and this Manual on Corporate Governance, as may be issued and/or amended. The Company subscribes to the philosophy of integrity, accountability, and transparency in its manner of doing business; dealing fairly with its clients, investors, stockholders, employees, agents, and the communities affected by its activities; professionalism among its Board of Directors, executives, and employees in managing the Company, and respect for the laws and regulations of the countries affecting its businesses. The Board and Management believe that corporate governance is a necessary component of sound strategic business management and will, therefore, undertake every effort necessary to create awareness within the organization to ensure that the principles of fairness, accountability, and transparency are adhered to in conducting the day-to-day business of the Company.

# II. Objective

This Manual shall institutionalize the principles of good corporate governance and shall promote awareness of the principles in the entire organization.

III. Definition of Terms- The following terminologies will be a helpful tool for the users of this Policy:

Corporate Governance — the system of stewardship and control to guide organizations in fulfilling their long-term economic, moral, legal, and social obligations towards their stakeholders. Corporate governance is a system of direction, feedback, and control using regulations, performance standards, and ethical guidelines to hold the Board and Management accountable for ensuring ethical behavior — reconciling long-term customer satisfaction with shareholder value — to the benefit of all stakeholders and society. Its purpose is to maximize the organization's long-term success, creating sustainable value for its shareholders, stakeholders, and the nation.

**Board of Directors** — the governing body elected by the stockholders that exercises the corporate powers of Medocare, conducts all its business, and controls its properties.

Management — members of the Executive Committee given the authority by the Board of Directors to implement the policies it has laid down in the conduct of the business of Medocare.

Independentdirector - a person who is independent of management and the controlling shareholder and is free from any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director.

**Executive director** — a director who has executive responsibility for the day-to-day operations of Medocare.

**Non-executive director** — a director who has no executive responsibility and does not perform any work related to the operations of Medocare.

**Conglomerate** — a group of corporations that has diversified business activities in varied industries, whereby the operations of such businesses are controlled and managed by a parent corporate entity.

Internal control — a process designed and effected by the Board of Directors, Management, and all levels of personnel to provide reasonable assurance on the achievement of objectives through efficient and effective operations; reliable, complete, and timely financial and management information; and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and Medocare's policies and procedures.

Enterprise Risk Management — a process, effected by Medocare's Board of Directors, Management, and other personnel, applied in strategy setting and across the enterprise that is designed to identify potential events that may affect the entity, manage risks to be within its risk appetite, and providereasonable assurance regarding the achievement of entity objectives.

IC or Insurance Commission - the Insurance Commission of the Philippines.

Related Party — shall cover Medocare's subsidiaries, as well as affiliates and any party (including their subsidiaries, affiliates, and special purpose entities), that Medocare exerts direct or indirect control over or that exerts direct or indirect control over Medocare; Medocare's directors; officers; shareholders and related interests (DOSRI), and their close family members, as well as corresponding persons in affiliated companies. This shall also include such other person or juridical entity whose interests may pose a potential conflict with the interest of Medocare.

Related Party Transactions - a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. It should be interpreted broadly to include not only transactions that are entered into with related parties, but also outstanding transactions that are entered into with an unrelated party that subsequently becomes a related party.

Shareholder or Stockholder - refers to an owner of a share of stock in Medocare.

Stakeholders — any individual, organization, or society at large who can either affect and/or be affected by Medocare's strategies, policies, business decisions, and operations, in general. This includes, among others, customers, creditors, employees, suppliers, investors, as well as the government and community in which it operates.

# IV. ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) and IC Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR)

In an Advisory dated May 3, 2013, and Circular Letter (CL) 14-2013 dated July 1, 2013, Insurance Commissioner Emmanuel F. Dooc prescribed the adoption of the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) by insurance companies and mutual benefit associations (MBAs). The ACGS replaced the Corporate Governance Scorecard (CGS) required under Circular Letter (CL) 21-2009, dated August 12, 2009. However, it would be two years later under CL 2015-23, dated May 8, 2015, when the Guidelines on Compliance with the ACGS would be provided. In the most recent CL 71-2020, the Commission announced the Revised Code of Corporate Governance (the "Code") for Insurance Commission Regulated Companies (ICRCs).

The Code is intended to ensure that the corporate governance standards of ICRCs are of a level at par with its regional and global counterparts. The latest G20/ Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Principles of Corporate Governance, the Association of Southeast Asian Nations Corporate Governance Scorecard, and the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies issued by

the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) were used as key reference materials in the drafting of the Code. The Code will adopt the "comply or explain" approach. If a company cannot comply with the Code, it must identify any areas of non-compliance, explain the reasons, and provide an action plan to address non-compliant areas in the Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR).must identify any areas of non-compliance, explain the reasons, and provide an action plan to address non-compliant areas in the Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR).

The Code is arranged as follows: Principles, Recommendations, and Explanations. The Principles can be considered as high-level statements of corporate governance good practice, and apply to all ICRCs. The Recommendations are objective criteria that are intended to identify the specific features of corporate governance good practice that are recommended for companies operating according to the Code. Alternatives to a Recommendation may be justified in particular circumstances if good governance can be achieved by other means. When a Recommendation is not complied with, the company must disclose and describe thenon-compliance, and explain how the overall Principle is being achieved. The alternative should be consistent with the overall Principle. The annual corporate governance report shall contain the descriptions and explanations written in plain language and a clear, complete, objective, and precise manner so that shareholders and other stakeholders can assess the company's governance framework. The Explanations strive to provide companies with additional information on the recommended best practice.

Two (2) copies of a fully accomplished ACGR shall be filed with the Insurance Commission on or before May 30 of the following year. Each copy of the ACGR shall be duly notarized and shall bear the original and manual signatures. The ACGR shall be certified under oath by (1) Chairman of the Board; (2) CEO or President; (3) All Independent Directors; (4) Corporate Governance Compliance Officer; and (5) Corporate Secretary. The ACGR shall cover all relevant information from January to December of the given year<sup>1</sup>.

# V. Governance Landscape

A. Board of Directors - The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall direction and control of the management of the Corporation, the formulation of the policies to be applied, and the conduct of the business of the Corporation. It shall, among others:

- Oversee the good governance of the Corporation;
- Appoint the officers of the Corporation;
- Establish the expenditure signing limits of the Corporation in a manner that will enable the Corporation's business to be operated in an efficient manner;
- Establish the remuneration terms of the Officers of the Corporation;
- Review and agree upon the Corporation's annual budget and monitor the Corporation's progress against the approved budget;
- Establish a clear regular dividend payment policy for the Corporation; and
- Appoint the Corporation's external auditors.

The Board shall approve a set of delegation of authority to the President on certain matters not specified in the By-Laws and relating to the Corporation's business and affairs, to the extent permitted

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71.

under Philippine laws. The delegation shall be embodied in a board resolution or a general authorization

The Board may create such committees, with such functions, as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Corporation.

# Moreover, the Board shall:

- Review and adopt a strategic plan for the Corporation;
- Oversee the conduct of the Corporation's business to ensure that the business is being properly managed and dealings with policyholders, claimants, and creditors are fair and equitable;
- Identify principal business risks and ensure the implementation of appropriate risk management systems to specifically manage the underwriting, reinsurance, investment, financial, and operational risks of the Corporation;
- Approve corporate policies in core areas of operations, specifically underwriting, investments, reinsurance, and claims management;
- Plan succession, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of, and where appropriate, replacing senior management;
- Develop and implement an investor relations program or adopt shareholder communications policy for the Corporation;
- Review the adequacy and the integrity of the company's internal control systems and management information systems including systems for compliance with the
- Insurance Code and other applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives, and guidelines;
- Led by the CEO and the heads of Board Committees, select and appoint officers who are qualified to administer insurance affairs soundly and effectively and to establish an adequate selection process for all personnel;
- Apply fit and proper standards on personnel. It must have integrity, technical expertise, and experience in the institution's business, either current or planned, which should be the key considerations in the selection process;
- Establish an appropriate compensation package for all personnel that are consistent with the interest of all its Stakeholders;
- Review and approve material transactions, not in the Corporation's ordinary course of business;
- Establish a system of check and balance which applies to the Board and its members;
- Led by the CEO and the heads of Board Committees, have an appropriate reporting system so that the Board can monitor, assess and control the performance of Management;
- Present to all its Shareholders a balanced and understandable assessment of the Corporation's performance and financial condition;
- Appoint a Compliance Officer, following the requirements of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance of the Insurance Commission, who shall be responsible forcoordinating, monitoring, and facilitating compliance with existing laws, rules, and regulations; Should also appoint a lead director among the pool of independent directors and
- The Board shall be entitled to the services of a Corporate Secretary who must ensure that all appointments are properly made, that all necessary information is obtained from directors, both for the Corporation's records and for the purposes of meeting statutory obligations, as well as

obligations arising from the requirements of the Insurance Commission and other regulatory agencies<sup>2</sup>.

# B. Directors - Directors, including Independent Directors, are expected, among others:

- To comply with the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, and policies approved by the Board of Directors and/or stockholders;
- To act in good faith and promote the success of the Corporation for the benefit of its stockholders;
- To exercise independent judgment, that is, not to subordinate the director's power to the will of others;
- To exercise reasonable care, skill, and diligence in the performance of his duties;
- To avoid conflicts or possible conflicts between the interests of the director and those of the Corporation;
- Not to accept any benefit from third parties because of being a director or doing anything as director of the Corporation;
- To declare any interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement to be undertaken by the Corporation immediately upon knowledge thereof<sup>3</sup>.
- Conduct fair business transaction with Corporation to ensure that personal interest does not bias Board decisions;
- Directors, whenever possible, avoid situations that would give rise to a conflict of interest. If
  transactions with the Corporation cannot be avoided, in the regular course of business, and
  upon terms not less favorable to the Corporation than those offered to others. The basic
  principle to be observed is that a director shall not use his position to make a profit or to acquire
  benefit or advantage for himself and/ or his related interests. He shall avoid situations that
  would compromise impartiality;
- Act honestly, in good faith, and with loyalty to the best interest of the Corporation, Stockholders
  (regardless of the number of their stock holdings), and Stakeholders such as its policyholders,
  investors, borrowers, other clients, and the general public. A director must always act in good
  faith with care which an ordinarily prudent man would exercise under similar circumstances,
  while a director shall always strive to promote the interest of all stockholders. He shall also give
  due regard to the rights and interests of Stakeholders;
- Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge their duties and responsibilities.
  Directors shall devote sufficient time to familiarize themselves with the Corporation's business.
  They must constantly be aware of the Corporation's condition and be knowledgeable enough to contribute meaningfully to the Board's work. They must attend and actively participate in Board and committee meetings, request and review meeting materials, ask questions, and request explanations. If a person cannot give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the institution, he should neither accept his nomination nor run for election as a member of the Board;
- Act judiciously. Before deciding on any matter brought before the Board of Directors, every director shall thoroughly evaluate the issues, ask questions and seek clarifications when necessary;
- Exercise independent judgment. A director shall view each problem/ situation objectively. When
  a disagreement with others occurs, he shall carefully evaluate the situation and state his

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2016-51.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Corporation Code of the Philippines.

position. He shall not be afraid to take a position even though it might be unpopular. Corollarily, he shall support plans and ideas that he thinks will be beneficial to the institution;

- Have a working knowledge of the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the
  institution, including the contents of its Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, the requirements
  of the Insurance Commission, and where applicable the requirements of other government
  agencies. A director shall also keep himself informed of the industry developments and business
  trends to safeguard the institution's competitiveness; and
- Observe confidentiality. Directors must observe the confidentiality of non-public information acquired because of their position as directors. They may not disclose said information to any other person without the authority of the Board<sup>4</sup>.
- Attends and actively participates in all meetings of the board, committee and shareholders in person or through tele/video conferencing. Also review materials of meeting for board and committee meetings and ask necessary questions or seek clarification and explanation during the said meetings.

# C. Chairman of the Board

# Functions and Responsibilities

The functions and responsibilities of the Chairman include, among others, the following:

- Provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the Board works effectively and performs its duties responsibly;
- Ensure that Board meetings are held per the By-Laws and annual schedule approved by the Board;
- Supervise the preparation of the agenda of each meeting in coordination with the Corporate Secretary, taking into consideration the proposals of the President,
- Management and Directors of the Company, and make certain that the meeting agenda focuses on strategic matters, including the overall risk appetite of the Company considering the developments in the business and regulatory environments, key governance concerns, and contentious issues that will significantly affect operations;
- Ensure that the lines of communication and flow of information between Management and the Board are maintained:
- Ensure that the Board receives accurate, timely, relevant, insightful, concise, and clear information to enable it to make sound decisions;
- Facilitate discussions on key issues by fostering an environment conducive to constructive debate and leveraging on the respective skills and expertise of the Directors;
- Ensure that the Board evaluates the reports submitted and representations made by Management;
- Assure the availability or proper orientation for first-time Directors and continuing training opportunities for all Directors; and
- Make sure that the performance of the Board is evaluated at least once a year and discussed/followed up on.
- Should not be an independent director nor the CEO of the company.

# ii. Separation of Roles of Chairman and President

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2016-51.

It is the Chairman who determines the effectiveness of the Board's operations. The President, reporting to the Board in turn, has/have responsibility for the general management of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board cannot concurrently serve as the President and CEO of the Company to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability, and greater capacity of the Board for an independent decision. The Chairman of the Board shall be a Non-executive Director5.

# D. Corporate Secretary

The Board should ensure that it is assisted in its duties by a Corporate Secretary, who should be a separate individual from the Compliance Officer. The Corporate Secretary should not be a member of the Board of Directors and should annually attend training on corporate governance. The Corporate Secretary is primarily responsible to the Corporation and its Shareholders, and not to the Chairman or President of the Company and has, among others, the following duties and responsibilities:

- Safekeeps and preserves the integrity of the minutes of the meetings of the Board, as well as other official records of the Corporation;
- Keeps abreast on relevant laws, regulations, all governance issuances, relevant industry developments and operations of the corporation, and advises the Board and the Chairman on all relevant issues as they arise;
- Works fairly and objectively with the Board, Management and Stockholders and contributes to the flow of information between the Board and management, the Board and its committees, and the Board and Stakeholders, including Shareholders;
- Advises on the establishment of Board committees and their terms of reference;
- Informs members of the Board, following the By-laws, of the agenda of their meetings at least five (5) working days in advance, and ensures that the members have before them accurate information that will enable them to arrive at intelligent decisions on matters that require their approval;
- Attends all Board meetings, except when justifiable causes, such as illness, death in the immediate family, and serious accidents, prevent him/her from doing so;
- Performs required administrative functions;
- Oversees the drafting of the By-laws and ensures that they conform with regulatory requirements; and
- Performs such other duties and responsibilities as may be provided by applicable law, rules, and regulations.

# E. Compliance Officer

The Board should ensure that it is assisted in its duties by a Compliance Officer, who should have a rank of Vice President or an equivalent position with adequate stature and authority in the Corporation. The Compliance Officer should not be a member of the Board of Directors and should annually attend training on corporate governance. The Compliance Officer is a member of the Management in charge of the compliance function. Similar to the Corporate Secretary, he/she is primarily liable to the Corporation

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2016-51.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71

and its Shareholders, and not to the Chairman or President. He/she has, among others, the following duties and responsibilities:

- Ensures proper onboarding of new directors (i.e., orientation on the Corporation's business, charter, Articles of Incorporation, and By-laws, among others);
- Monitors, reviews, evaluates, and ensures the compliance by the Corporation, its officers and directors with the relevant laws, this Manual, rules and regulations, and all governance issuances of regulatory agencies;
- Reports the matter to the Board if violations are found and recommend the imposition of appropriate disciplinary action;
- Ensures the integrity and accuracy of all documentary submissions to regulators;
- Appears before the Insurance Commission when summoned concerning compliance with this
- Collaborates with other departments to properly address compliance issues, which may be subject to investigation;
- Identifies possible areas of compliance issues and works towards the resolution of the same;
- Ensures the attendance of board members and key officers to relevant trainings; and
- Performs such other duties and responsibilities as may be provided by the IC7.

# VI. Board Committees

To aid in complying with the principle of good governance, the Board shall establish the necessary specialized Committees with specific responsibilities to assist in the development and implementation of systems and practices that would promote good corporate governance. The Board should ensure a continuous mix of competencies, skills, and experiences of its members.

The Board shall establish the following committees8:

- **Executive Committee**
- Management Committee
- Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee
- Related Party Transaction Committee
- Audit Committee
- Risk and Compliance Committee

# VII. Board Composition

# A. Qualifications of Directors

A highly effective Board requires Directors to have the integrity, competencies, and capabilities to carry out their fiduciary duties in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. For the Directors to effectively execute their duties, they should have the requisite experience, skill, time, and commitment as befits the Director of a very complex business. The following characteristics and qualifications are necessary for new candidates being considered for nomination as well as existing Directors:

<sup>7</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71

<sup>8</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71

- Directors shall be holders of at least one (1) share of the Corporation.
- Director shall be at least twenty-five (25) years of age at the time of his appointment.
- Directors shall possess the necessary skills, competence, and experience, in terms of management capabilities.
- Directors shall be a person with professional ethics, integrity, and credibility.
- Directors shall not hold any incompatible position in another company, entity, or business.
- Director must not have been convicted by final judgment of an offense punishable by imprisonment for a period exceeding six years, or a violation of the Corporation Code committed within five years before the date of his election.

# B. Election and Term

Directors of the Company are elected by a simple majority of Shareholders at the Annual or Special Stockholders' Meeting. Directors may serve for several terms so long as they continue to contribute to the Board's effectiveness and they remain free of real or perceived conflict of interest. The Board's Independent Directors should serve for a maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years.

# C. Succession Planning

The Corporation acknowledges that a succession plan for its Board of Directors is in the best interest of the Company, its stakeholders, and employees and will foster continuity of leadership for the Board. The succession plan is intended to give assurance and confidence to all stakeholders of the Company, demonstrating that leadership changes would be carefully planned, communicated, and implemented by the Board of Directors.

Succession planning is an ongoing process of identifying, assessing, and developing people to ensure the organization's continued effective performance through leadership continuity. The plan includes succession for the Board as a whole and the Board's leadership positions.

The purpose of the plan is to ensure the Board's continuity is composed of directors with collective working knowledge, experience, or expertise that is relevant to the Corporation's industry/sector to meet its short-term and long-term goals.

The succession plan shall comply with the qualifications and disqualifications standards set in the Corporation's Manual of Corporate Governance for the identification of potential candidates for membership to the Board. The succession plan may consider and provide for rotation of directors through Committee Chairperson positions and memberships to provide for a balance of continuity and rotation in the leadership role.

### Procedures:

-

- The Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee should actively seek and vet appropriate candidates for board directorship continually.
- The Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee should collect resumes for consideration continually.

 The Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee shall not seek the assistance of a third-party consultant for recruiting board members without the approval of the board.

# D. Board Independence

The Board should be composed of at least twenty percent (20%) independent directors but not less than two (2) members of the Board of Directors shall be Independent Directors, provided that any fractional result from applying the required minimum proportion, i.e., 20%, shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number<sup>9</sup>.

The Board should ensure that its independent directors possess the necessary qualifications and none of the disqualifications for an independent director to hold the position.

An Independent Director refers to a person who:

- Is not or was not a regular director, officer, or employee of the Corporation, its subsidiaries, affiliates, or related companies during the past three (3) years counted from the date of his election/appointment;
- Is not or was not a regular director, officer, or employee of the Corporation's substantial stockholders and their related companies during the past three (3) years counted from the date of his election/appointment;
- Is not an owner of more than two percent (2%) of the outstanding shares or a stockholder with shares of stock sufficient to elect one (1) seat in the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or in any of its related companies or of its majority corporate shareholders;
- Is not a relative by affinity or consanguinity within the fourth (4th) degree of a director, officer, or stockholder holding shares of stock sufficient to elect one (1) seat in the board of the Corporation or any of its related companies or any of its Stockholders;
- Is not acting as a nominee or representative of any director or substantial shareholder of the Corporation, any of its related companies, or any of its substantial shareholders;
- Is not or was not retained as a professional adviser, auditor, consultant, agent or counsel of the Corporation, any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders, either in his capacity or through his firm during the past three (3) years counted from the date of his election/appointment;
- Is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship, has not engaged and does not engage in any transaction with the Corporation or with any of its related companies or with any of its substantial shareholders, whether by himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is a partner or a company of which he is a director or substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are conducted at arm's length and could not materially interfere with or influence the exercise of his judgment;
- was not appointed in the Corporation, its subsidiaries, affiliates or related companies as Chairman "Emeritus", "Ex-Officio", Regular Directors, Officers or Members of any Advisory Board, or otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board of Directors in the performance of its duties and responsibilities during the past three (3) years counted from the date of his election/appointment;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2016-51

- Is not affiliated with any non-profit organization that receives significant funding from the Corporation or any of its related companies or substantial shareholders; and,
- Is not employed as an executive officer of another company where any of the Corporation's executives serve as regular directors.

A "related company" refers to (a) the Corporation's holding/parent company; (b) its subsidiary or affiliate; (c) subsidiaries of its holding/parent company; or (d) a corporation where a covered entity or its majority stockholder own such number of shares that will allow/enable such person or group to elect at least one (1) member of the Board of Directors or a partnership where such majority stockholder is a partner.

The Board's Independent Directors should serve for a maximum cumulative term of nine years. After which, the Independent Director should be perpetually barred from re-election as such in the Corporation but may continue to qualify for nomination and election as a Non-Independent Director. In the instance that the Corporation wants to retain an Independent Director who has served for nine (9) years, the Board should provide meritorious justification/s and seek Shareholders' approval during the annual shareholders' meeting 10.

The Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee will disclose annually the Board's composition giving due regard to its diversified perspectives and will monitor the implementation of this Policy. Such disclosure shall be made annually in the Company's Corporate Governance Report.

The Nomination, Remuneration, and Corporate Governance Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required and recommend any such revisions for the consideration and approval of the Board.

# E. Board Diversity Policy

Medocare is committed to a diverse, inclusive, and equitable environment where all board members, staff, and members feel respected and valued regardless of gender, age, race, ethnicity, national origin, sexual orientation or identity, disability, education, or any other bias.

Medocare is committed to being nondiscriminatory and providing equal opportunities for employment, volunteering, and advancement in all areas of work.

Medocare respects the value that diverse life experiences bring to its board and leadership and the company strives to listen to their views and give them value.

Medocare is committed to modeling diversity, inclusion, and equity and maintaining fair and equal treatment for all.

The board's philosophy on goals to provide informed leadership for diversity, inclusion, and equity include:

<sup>10</sup> IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71

- Will strive to see diversity, inclusion, and equity in connection with its vision and mission for the benefit of those it serves.
- Aim to recognize and address inequities in its policies, programs, and services.
- Promise to investigate underlying assumptions that interfere with its diversity policy.
- Commit to advocating for systemic inequities that impact its work at the board level and address
  it according to this policy and in accordance with its mission.
- Commit to challenging commonly accepted notions about what constitutes strong leadership within its organization.
- Commit to being transparent about diversity in all its interactions.
- Dedicate its time and resources to expanding greater diversity within its board and leadership positions.
- Commit to leading with respect and tolerance and encourage all employees to express this in their work within its organization.

# VIII. Board Performance

# A. Performance Evaluation

- The Board shall conduct an annual self-assessment to:
- Determine whether the Principles of Corporate Governance are being observed.
- Compare the performance of the Board, the Board Committees, and the individual directors with the requirements of this Manual
- Set forth the goals and objectives of the Board for the upcoming year
- Effect any improvements to this Manual as deemed necessary

The annual self-assessment may, as practicable, be supported by an external facilitator every three years and allow for a feedback mechanism as the Board deems appropriate.

# B. Training and Development of Board Members

There will be an orientation program for first-time directors and relevant annual continuing training for all directors.

The orientation program for first-time directors and relevant annual continuing training for all directors aim to promote effective board performance and the continuing qualification of the directors in carrying out their duties and responsibilities. It is suggested that the orientation program for first-time directors, be for at least eight hours, while the annual continuing training is for at least four hours.

All directors should be properly oriented upon joining the Board. This ensures that new members are appropriately apprised of their duties and responsibilities, before beginning their directorships. The orientation program covers IC-mandated topics on corporate governance and an introduction to the Company's business, Articles of Incorporation, and Code of Conduct. It should be able to meet the specific needs of the Company and the individual directors and aid any new director in effectively performing his or her functions.

The annual continuing training program, on the other hand, makes certain that the directors are continuously informed of the developments in the business and regulatory environments, including

emerging risks relevant to the Company. It involves courses on corporate governance matters relevant to our company, including audit, internal controls, risk management, sustainability, and strategy. The Company shall assess its training and development needs in determining the coverage of its continuing training program.

All Directors, as well as Officers with a rank of Vice-President and up, are enjoined to attend at least a one-day training and orientation course on Corporate Governance conducted by duly accredited training providers of the Insurance Commission. Topics to be covered shall include Code of Corporate Governance, Annual Corporate Governance Report, Board

Responsibilities, Illegal activities of corporations/ directors/officers, Protection of minority shareholders, Related Party Transactions, Liabilities of directors, Confidentialities, Conflict of interest, Enterprise Risk management, and case studies on Financial Reporting and Audit.

Subsequently, all new Directors and Officers elected/appointed shall complete this requirement within the first three (3) months of their assumption to office and with the corresponding proof of compliance furnished to the Insurance Commission<sup>11</sup>.

# IX. Collective Liability of Directors

Board members are generally not personally liable when they act in good faith on behalf of the Corporation. However, there are cases where the directors or other corporate officers may be held liable jointly with the Corporation. There are cases where corporate directors may be held personally liable for damages especially when a director exceeds the scope of his functions or duties. A director may be held personally liable in the following cases:

# A. Unlawful Act, Gross Negligence or Bad Faith and Conflict of Interest

Directors who "willfully and knowingly vote for or assent to patently unlawful acts of the corporation" may be held liable for damages suffered by the Corporation, Stockholders, and other persons.

Directors who are guilty of gross negligence or bad faith in directing the affairs of the Corporation may also be held liable for damages suffered by the Corporation or by third persons.

Finally, directors are prohibited from acquiring any pecuniary interest in conflict with their duties. Whenever such conflicting interests are acquired by them, they are "liable as trustees for the corporation and must account for the profits which otherwise would have accrued to the corporation. 12"

# B. Contractual Stipulation

Directors may be held liable when the director, trustee, or officer has contractually agreed or stipulated to hold himself personally and solidarily liable with the Corporation.

### C. Disloyalty

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71; IC Circular Letter No. 2016-51

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup>Corporation Code of the Philippines

A director may be held liable for "disloyalty". There is disloyalty "where a director, by virtue of his office, acquires for himself a business opportunity which should belong to the corporation, thereby obtaining profits to the prejudice of such corporation." Such director must account by refunding the corporation with the profits he obtained unless his act has been ratified by a vote of the stockholders owning or representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock. The director must account for profits even if he risked his funds13.

# D. Filing False Statement

Furthermore, the Securities Regulation Code also provides for the possible civil liability of a director for filling false registration statements with the SEC. This rule specifically outlines that a director is liable for damages incurred by investors who incurred damages due to the untruthful statements or omission in registration statements filed with the SEC.

# X. Conflict of Interest

Directors are required to disclose any conflicts of interest and to abstain from participating in any discussion or voting on any matter in which they have a material personal interest except with the prior approval of the Board.

Conflicts of interest exist in the following situations, among others:

- Self-dealing, in which a Director causes the Company to enter into a transaction with another organization that benefits such Director.
- Outside employment in other HMO companies or insurance companies that are viewed as competitors by the Company.
- Family interests, in which a relative up to the third degree of affinity or consanguinity is employed (or applies for employment) or where goods or services are purchased from such a relative or a firm controlled by a relative.
- Receiving high-value gifts from entities that do business with the Company. In this regard, high value is defined as worth more than Php5,000.
- Interest in stocks or other investments, in which the Company is invested in or is contemplating investing in.

Directors are required to disclose any notifiable interests to the President and/or Chief Executive Officer, Compliance Officer, and Corporate Secretary:

- on the date that the director is appointed;
- upon a change to a notifiable interest of a director

# XI. Confidentiality and Information Management

Directors must avoid even a perception that they have appropriated an opportunity that belonged to the Company. If Directors take advantage of an opportunity of which they become aware by their position as Directors, and that opportunity is one in which the Company might conceivably have had an interest, the Directors have acted counter to their fiduciary duty to the Company.

<sup>13</sup> Ibid.

Directors also have a duty of confidence towards the Company. They must not misuse information obtained from the Company by their position on the Board. A duty to keep such information confidential arises where the information is confidential by nature and/or was communicated in confidence.

Ultimately, the best interests of the Company will dictate how Directors can use the information received in their capacity as Directors.

Since Directors are responsible for managing or supervising the management of the business affairs of the Company, they are entitled to have access to any information belonging to the Company. The flow of information to Directors is critical to the discharge of their responsibilities.

A balance must be struck such that Directors are informed of significant issues facing the Company and provided with the information needed to come to informed views. It is critical that the Directors receive the information in sufficient time to allow them to read and digest it. The amount of time needed will vary depending on the volume and complexity of the information.

# XII. Internal Control System and Transparency

# A. Enterprise Risk Management

The Company shall have a separate risk management function with the responsibility to identify, assess, and monitor key risk exposures. Its enterprise risk management activities shall include the following:

- define a risk management strategy;
- identify and analyze key risks exposure relating to economic, environmental, social, and governance (EESG) factors and the achievement of the organization's strategic objectives;
- evaluate and categorize each identified risk using the company's predefined risk categories and parameters;
- establish a risk register with clearly defined, prioritized, and residual risks;
- develop a risk mitigation plan for the most important risks of the company, as defined by the risk management strategy;
- communicate and report significant risk exposures including business risks (i.e., strategic, compliance, operational, financial, and reputational risks), control issues, and risk mitigation plan to the Risk Committee;
- monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the organization's risk management processes.

### B. Audit

# i. Internal Audit Function

The Company should have in place an independent internal audit function that provides independent and objective assurance, and consulting services designed to add value and improve the Company's operations and help it accomplish its objectives. It must provide a systematic and disciplined approach in the evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes through which the Board, Management, and stockholders of the Company could obtain reasonable

assurance that the Company's key organizational and procedural controls are appropriate, adequate, effective, and complied with.

Internal audits shall cover, at the minimum, the evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of controls covering the Company's financial reporting, governance, operations, and information systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness, and efficiency of operations, protection of assets, and compliance with laws, rules, regulations, and contracts.

# External Audit Function

The external auditor, duly accredited by the relevant regulatory agencies, shall be appointed by the Board upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. The external auditor shall undertake an independent audit of the Corporation and provide an objective assurance on how financial statements are prepared and presented to the Board and the stockholders. The external auditor should be rotated or changed every five (5) years or earlier or the signing partner of the external auditing firm assigned to the Corporation should be changed with the same frequency.

# C. Related Party Transactions

The Company shall adopt, implement, and monitor compliance with a policy governing related party transactions (RPTs). The policy shall include the definition of related parties, covered transactions, materiality thresholds, and the process of review, approval, and disclosure of RPTs, as follows:

- Following international Accounting Standard 24 on Related Party Transactions ("IAS 24") and
  other laws and regulations, as may be applicable, RPTs shall be reviewed and approved by
  appropriate authorities designated by the Company. The review shall determine whether an RPT
  meets the following standards: (1) the RPT is on arm's length terms; and (2) the RPT is in the
  best interest of the Company and its stakeholders, as a whole, considering the relevant
  circumstances;
- Material RPTs shall be subject to the approval by the Board; and
- RPTs shall be disclosed per the applicable disclosure requirements.

# D. Financial Reporting

Management is primarily responsible to the Board for financial reporting relating to the Company's position and prospects and adequate flow of information. This information may include the background or explanatory information relating to matters to be brought before the Board, copies of disclosure statements and documents, budgets, forecasts, and monthly/quarterly/annual internal financial statements. Any variance between projections and actual results should also be disclosed and explained by management to the Board. Timely and accurate information would enable the Board to properly fulfill their duties and responsibilities.

# E. Disclosures of Non-Financial Information

The Company shall recognize and place importance on the interdependence between business and society and promote a mutually beneficial relationship that allows the Company to grow its business while contributing to the advancement of the society where it operates.

The Company shall adopt a policy for the disclosure of material and reportable information regarding non-financial and sustainability issues, with a focus on the management of economic, environmental, social, and governance (EESG) issues of the business, following a globally recognized standard in reporting sustainability and non-financial information.

The Company shall disclose its Annual Corporate Governance Report as well which will be posted on the website 14.

XIII. Relationship with Shareholders

# A. Promoting Shareholder Rights

The Board shall respect the following rights of the Stockholders following the By-Laws:

- Right to vote on all matters that require their consent and approval
- Right to inspect corporate books and records
- Right to information
- Right to dividends
- Appraisal right

# B. Protection of Minority Shareholders

The Board shall respect the rights of the minority Stockholders to nominate candidates for seats in the Board of Directors who possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications of Directors as prescribed in the Company's By-Laws.

The Board shall be transparent and fair in the conduct of the annual and special stockholders' meetings. The stockholders should be encouraged to personally attend such meetings. If they could not attend, they should be apprised ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy subject to the requirement of the By-Laws.

The Board shall promote the rights of the stockholders, remove impediments to the exercise of those rights, and provide an adequate avenue for them to seek timely redress for violation of their rights.

The Board should ensure that accurate and timely information should be made available to the stockholders to enable them to make a sound judgment on all matters brought to their attention for consideration or approval.

In case of a disposition of all or substantially all of the Company property and assets, or other merger or consolidation, the Board should respect the appraisal right of the shareholders through the appointment of an independent party to evaluate the fairness of the transaction price.

# XIV. Approvals and Reviews

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71

This manual shall be reviewed as needed taking into consideration the Company's changing business needs and regulatory requirements. Any recommended revisions to the Manual are subject to approval by the Board.

This Corporate Governance Manual shall be effective upon its approval by the Board of Directors.

Conforme

ESTEBAN B. OY, JR. Chairman

VISITACIÓN S. UY

Treasurer

VIANCA PRECIOSA SY UY Director

DAQUEL J. UY Director PAMP NIELSEN SY UY Vice Chairman

CHARLEMAGNE CARLO SY UY Director

ABRAHAM C. ELAMPARO Director

D. Vgado LUCILA DELGADO Director DAHN GREIGOR SY UY

President

FRANKLIN G. CHUA

Director

EUGENE L. SAGCAL

Director

Corporate Secretary

### XV. Annexes

## A. List of disqualification of directors

The following are the grounds for the disqualification of a director:

# Permanently Disqualified

- Persons who have been convicted by final judgment of the court for offenses involving dishonesty or breach of trusts such as estafa, embezzlement, extortion, forgery, malversation, swindling, and theft;
- · Persons who have been convicted by final judgment of the court for violation of insurance laws;
- Persons who have been judicially declared insolvent, spendthrift or unable to enter into a contract; or
- Directors, officers, or employees of closed insurance companies or any insurance intermediaries who were responsible for such institution's closure as determined by the insurance Commission.

## Temporarily Disqualified

- Persons who refuse to fully disclose the extent of their business interests when required under a
  provision of law or a circular, memorandum, or rule or regulation of the Insurance Commission.
  This disqualification shall be in effect as long as the refusal persists;
- Directors who have been absent or who have not participated for whatever reasons in more than fifty percent (50%) of all meetings, both regular and special of the Board of Directors during their incumbency, or any twelve (12) month period during said incumbency. This disqualification applies for purposes of the succeeding elections;
- Persons convicted for offenses involving dishonesty, breach of contract, or violation of insurance laws but whose conviction has not yet become final and executory;
- Directors and officers of closed insurance companies and insurance intermediaries pending clearance from the Insurance Commission;
- Directors disqualified for failure to observe/discharge their duties and responsibilities prescribed under existing regulations. This disqualification applies until the lapse of the specific period of disqualification of the Insurance Commission;
- Directors who failed to attend the special seminar on corporate governance. This
  disqualification applies until the director concerned had attended such a seminar;
- Persons dismissed/terminated from employment for cause. This disqualification shall be in effect until they have cleared themselves of involvement in the alleged irregularity;
- Those under preventive suspension;
- Persons with derogatory records with the NBI, court, police, Interpol and insurance authorities
  of other countries (for foreign directors) involving a violation of any law, rule, or regulation of
  the government or any of its instrumentalities adversely affecting the integrity and/or ability to
  discharge the duties of an insurance director. This disqualification applies until they have cleared
  themselves of involvement in the alleged irregularity;
- Persons who are delinquent in the payment of their obligations as defined hereunder:
  - Delinquency in the payment of obligations means that obligations of a person with the insurance company or its related companies where he/she is a director or officer; or at

- least two obligations with other insurance companies, under different credit lines or loan contracts;
- Obligations shall include all borrowings from an insurance company or its related companies obtained by:
  - A director or officer for his account or as the representative or agent of others or where he/she acts as a guarantor, endorsers, or surety for loans from such institutions;
  - The spouse or child under the parental authority of the director or officer;
  - Any person whose borrowings or loan proceeds were credited to the amount of, or used for the benefit of a director or officer;
  - A partnership of which a director or officer, or his/her spouse is the managing partner or a general partner owning a controlling interest in the partnership;
     and
  - A corporation, association, or firm wholly-owned or the majority of the capital is contributed by any or a group of persons mentioned in the foregoing items 1, 2, and 4

This disqualification should be in effect as long as the delinquency persists 15.

# B. Insurance Commission Requirements

Insurance Commission Circular Letter	Requirement	Date of Submission	
CL No. 2016-51	Minutes of Stockholders Meeting	Within 30 days after each regular or special meeting	
	List of Members of Board of Directors Identifying the Independent Director and List of Company Officers with their respective positions	30 days after election or	
	Independent Director (with Affidavit under Oath) Police Clearance Biodata of Directors	appointment	
	Course on Corporate Governance	within the first 3 months of their assumption of office	
CL No. 2020-71	Annual Corporate Governance Report	On/or before May 30 of the following year	
CL No. 2017-29	Related Party Transaction Report	For annual RPT Report – withir 30 days after the end of the calendar year	
		For quarterly RPT Report – 20 days after the end of every quarter	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup>IC Circular Letter No. 2020-71